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          1  COMMITTEE ON PARKS, RECREATION, CULTURAL AFFAIRS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Good afternoon.

          3  I'm Council Member Wendell Foster, Chairman of the

          4  Committee on Parks, Recreation, Cultural Affairs and

          5  International Intergroup Relations.

          6                 Today we are going to have -- today's

          7  hearing on the Committee on Parks, we will consider

          8  five proposed Local Laws.

          9                 Intro. No. 412 by Council Member

         10  O'Donovan, co-sponsored by Council Member Abel,

         11  would name Tompkins Avenue between Broad Street and

         12  Vanderbilt Avenue in Staten Island as the Reverend

         13  Doctor Beasley Way.

         14                 Intro. No. 471 by Council Members

         15  Golden, Ognibene, Fiala, Stabile, Abel, Eristoff,

         16  Dear, and Robles, co-sponsored by City Council

         17  Members Fisher, O'Donovan, Provenzano, would name

         18  Bay 8th Street ball fields in Brooklyn as the

         19  Anthony Mosomillo Memorial Ballfields.

         20                 Intro. No. 475 by Council Members

         21  Fiala, Abel, Golden and Stabile, co-sponsored by

         22  Council Members O'Donovan and Provenzano, would

         23  rename Sampson Avenue from Lamoka Avenue to Katan

         24  Avenue in Staten Island as Anne McGarvey Way.

         25                 Intro. No. 479 by Council Members
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          2  Golden, Dear and Abel, co-sponsored by Council

          3  Members Fisher, McCaffrey, O'Donovan and Provenzano,

          4  would name the 65th to 67th Street Interchange on

          5  the Belt Parkway in Brooklyn as Police Officer

          6  Charles Oddo Interchanged.

          7                 Intro. No. 536 by Council Members

          8  Robles and Golden, co-sponsored by Council Members

          9  O'Donovan and Abel, would name Moore Street between

         10  Bushwick Avenue and White Street in Brooklyn as

         11  Reverend Doctor Jeremiah Fennell Street.

         12                 Each one of these five proposed local

         13  laws is supported by the Community Board within

         14  which these sites are located.

         15                 May I introduce, first of all, my

         16  colleagues, to my left is Council Member Povman, and

         17  below here is Council Member Eristoff, Council

         18  Member Robles, Council Member Robinson.  And to my

         19  right, Mr. Frank Neely, our Legislative Analyst, and

         20  to my right is our able Counsel, Attorney Pers.

         21                 We are only meeting today to rename,

         22  street name changes.  Let me say to those of you who

         23  are here for the first time that what we do, is in

         24  renaming streets we do not remove the old name, we

         25  simply add a new name.  And so we will begin in

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            5

          1  COMMITTEE ON PARKS, RECREATION, CULTURAL AFFAIRS

          2  order in which they were given to us, unless some

          3  Council member must have their's read first.  All

          4  right, Council Member O'Donovan is not here, Council

          5  Member Abel is not here, anyone here to speak for

          6  Intro. No. 470, for Reverend Doctor Beasley Way,

          7  anyone to speak for that?  If there is anyone here

          8  to speak on that, all right, would you just take a

          9  seat over there please, and sign in.

         10                 If you have more than one person, we

         11  don't need everyone to speak, they may if they must,

         12  but it is not necessary for everyone to speak.  Sign

         13  in, everyone's name can be recorded in support

         14  instead of just speaking by simply coming up and

         15  saying that you are in support of or in opposition

         16  of.  I repeat, if there is one person that would

         17  like to speak for the group, if it is all for same

         18  Intro., one person may do it, others may simply come

         19  up and say they are for or against that, this way

         20  you will give us an opportunity to hear every Intro.

         21

         22                 Do we have anyone's name yet, Mr.

         23  Counsel?  All right, Sir, Pastor why don't we start

         24  with you, just introduce your name and tell us who

         25  you are, and why you're here?
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          2                 Excuse me, you're congregation can't

          3  be that small, someone has got to hear you.  Okay,

          4  speak up, Sir.

          5                 REVEREND CARNEY:  Okay, my name is

          6  Reverend Donald Carney, Pastor of Stapelton UAME

          7  Church, where William Doctor Beasley was the Pastor

          8  there.  He was a great man, he was a man amongst

          9  men, a man of compassion, love for the community,

         10  and we are asking in his honor to have that block in

         11  memoration and his honor.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  All right let me

         13  say that are Council members have been supplied with

         14  the information on these persons, and if they have

         15  questions on that they will ask the same.

         16                 Ma'am, would you identify yourself

         17  and tell us why you are here.  Because I say, excuse

         18  me, let me repeat, some of you may just like to give

         19  your name and say whether you are for or against, so

         20  that it will be on the record.  All right, tell us

         21  who you are and why you're here?

         22                 REVEREND HOWARD:  My name is Reverend

         23  Maggie Howard. I'm here in support of the street

         24  being named after the late, Reverend Doctor William

         25  H. Beasley.  You already have, as you stated, - -
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Yes.

          3                 REVEREND HOWARD: - -  information

          4  pertaining to him, but the information you may not

          5  have is that in 1987 a soup kitchen was started at

          6  Stapelton UMAE Church feeding the community. It

          7  began feeding 20 people, and now today, it's two

          8  days a week and they feed over 175 people.  In

          9  addition to that there was a food pantry which gives

         10  out food every Tuesday, and at the end of the month

         11  they feed from 750 to 800 people.  There are

         12  workshops that are given to the community on AIDS

         13  awareness, basic nutrition, nutrition and facts,

         14  nutrition and anemia, just continuously going

         15  through the information and reference to nutrition,

         16  classes on personal hygiene and food born illnesses.

         17

         18                 During the months of June through

         19  November, every Saturday, the Church gives and

         20  continues to give over 3,000 pounds of fresh fruits

         21  and vegetables to the community, in addition to

         22  that, they give out bread and various food,

         23  perishable items during the month.  Every year the

         24  Church continues to give luncheons for the senior

         25  citizens giving out gifts or Christmas gifts during
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          2  the holidays, Thanksgiving your records state that

          3  we give out Thanksgiving baskets for Christmas and

          4  Thanksgiving.  In addition to that we have a

          5  clothing program where we distribute clothing to the

          6  community.  Our tutoring program was formed for the

          7  youth in the community, a teen RAP group which

          8  teaches the children how important it is to talk it

          9  out, and the late Doctor William H. Beasley had a

         10  handicapped ramp built at the Church for those

         11  senior citizens in the community who desired to come

         12  to church, but because a lot of churches have stairs

         13  as opposed to ramps, the ramp was built.

         14                 That is all.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you very

         16  much.  Anyone else, if you just want to get your

         17  name on the record by saying you're for or against?

         18                 REVEREND DAVIS:  I'm Reverend Charles

         19  Davis former Pastor of that Church, and I am for the

         20  naming of Doctor William Beasley.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 MR. PRICE:  My name is Jason Price,

         24  and I am in favor of it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  All right, thank
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          2  you very much. Council members, do you have any

          3  questions?  Excuse me one minute?            Thank

          4  you very much, you can be seated and wait for the

          5  hearing.  Okay, thank you very much.  Mr. Golden,

          6  would you speak on 471, the Memorial Ballfield?  Is

          7  anyone else here to speak on that issue?  The family

          8  is here, oh, they're here, excuse me, the family for

          9  Anthony Mosomillo, are they here, where are they?

         10  Would you come up, please?  If you are desirous of

         11  speaking just let us have your form, did you fill

         12  out a slip?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  Do you wish

         14  to speak?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Just speak into

         16  the microphone, identify yourself, and tell us

         17  whether you are for or against, all right?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  What I will

         19  do, one second, I will do a little brief reading, if

         20  that is okay with you, Mr. Chair?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Sure.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  And then we

         23  will ask Mr. Mosomillo to give his approval or

         24  disapproval.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  I'm sorry, thank
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          2  you very much, thank you, Councilman.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  Thank you

          4  very much, Mr. Chair.  Anthony Mosomillo was born on

          5  January 30th, 1962 and he was raised in the

          6  Bensonhurst section of Brooklyn.  He attended

          7  Lafayette High School where he was a very popular

          8  student, graduating in 1981.  He attended the local

          9  schools in Bay Ridge, and grew up in Bay Ridge and

         10  Bensonhurst.

         11                 Mr. Mosomillo was appointed to the

         12  New York City Police Department in 1984, and he

         13  served more than 14 years in the 60 and 67

         14  Precincts, that was where I worked as a New York

         15  City Police Officer when I was on the Police

         16  Department back in 1973, in the 67 Precinct, as

         17  well.  It was one of the busier precincts, and he

         18  served his City and he served his community the best

         19  that I have seen.  He affected 36 arrests during his

         20  tenure and received Department recognition in 1986

         21  and 1987.

         22                 Anthony Mosomillo was married twice

         23  and was the father of two children, Marie 11 and

         24  Francesca 2.  In 1996, he and his wife Margaret

         25  moved the family to Queens, despite the move, he
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          2  retained his neighborhood connections in Brooklyn,

          3  he often returned there for haircuts and to play

          4  softball in the Bay 8th Street ballfields.

          5                 On Tuesday, May 26th, while

          6  attempting to execute a Bench Warrant within the 67

          7  Precinct, Officer Mosomillo was shot and killed at

          8  the age of 36 years of age.  He was survived by his

          9  wife, Margaret, his daughters Marie and Francesca,

         10  his parents, Anthony, Sr. And Marie, and his brother

         11  Sal, who is sitting here today with us, and his two

         12  sisters, Mary and Debbie.

         13                 For a devoted husband and father who

         14  died in the line of duty for his City, it is fitting

         15  that the Bay 8th Street ballfields, where he played

         16  so many games over the years, be renamed for the

         17  Anthony Mosomillo Memorial Ballfields in his honor.

         18  His widow and family have relocated to this area

         19  since his death.

         20                 On September 14th, the Brooklyn

         21  Community Board #10 unanimously voted to support

         22  renaming these ballfields to Anthony Mosomillo.

         23  Anthony Mosomillo's family grew up in the community,

         24  have great community support, his Mom is involved

         25  with PS 163 and works there with many of the
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          2  teachers and students that are from our community.

          3  He has done great things for our community, and we

          4  believe that this would be a great honor not only

          5  just for the Mosomillo Family, but for the

          6  community, so that they can remember Anthony

          7  Mosomillo 10 years, 20 years, 30 years from now when

          8  they see that name on the ballfield, they will be

          9  able to say, who was Anthony Mosomillo, and somebody

         10  will be able to say, that man gave his life for our

         11  City and was a great police officer and a great

         12  community person.

         13                 James Oddo is the Council member who

         14  also represents this area, knows the family

         15  personally as well, and if I may, to Jim Oddo.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Mr. Oddo.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:   Thank you, Mr.

         18  Chairman.  Let just begin by - -

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  I think he was

         20  called out to, oh, he is on, just identify yourself,

         21  Council member, please.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Council Member

         23  Oddo.  Let me just start off by thanking Speaker

         24  Vallone and you, Mr. Chairman, for seeing that this

         25  item was put on the agenda so that we could pass it
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          2  out.

          3                 Obviously, this has been a

          4  tremendously painful year for the Mosomillo Family,

          5  and Council Member Golden and I, and I'm sure all of

          6  my colleagues are hopeful that this gesture will

          7  provide just a little bit of comfort to that family.

          8                 You know, sometimes, we, in the

          9  Council are criticized for what we call street name

         10  changes, and folks in the media and folks outside

         11  the Council don't understand, perhaps, the subtly of

         12  it and how important they are to family members

         13  whose loved one has passed on.

         14                 I have a brother who is retired from

         15  the New York City Police Department, and anyone who

         16  has a family member who is a member of the NYPD or

         17  any other uniform services, or one who has friends,

         18  fears more than anything receiving that phone call

         19  either late at night or at any time during the day

         20  that something bad has befallen that family member.

         21  And I have come to know Sal Mosomillo and some of

         22  the folks in the family, and I think all of us share

         23  in their pain.

         24                 In a day where we're struggling to

         25  deal with certain police officers who don't deserve
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          2  to wear that uniform, we have a chance here to pay

          3  homage to a police officer who did the right thing,

          4  and if you talk to any of Police Officer Mosomillo's

          5  friends or colleagues, they will tell you that he

          6  did the right thing every time out.  And I just want

          7  to, again, express my thanks to Chairman Foster for

          8  putting this on and offering the Mosomillo Family

          9  just a little bit of comfort.

         10                 I have some testimony that I will not

         11  read from Congressman Vito Vasello, I will just ask

         12  that we put that officially as part of the record,

         13  and again, thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you very

         15  much, Council member.  Council Member Fiala, is he

         16  here, if we could, we would like to hear from him

         17  now?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  While waiting

         19  for him, Mr. Chair, I would like to point that you

         20  have several people from the community here to

         21  support the - -

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  I'm sorry, I was

         23  not listening, do say that again, please?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  There are

         25  several people here from the community that came
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          2  here to support the Officer Mosomillo naming of the

          3  field and that is Adeline Michaels from the

          4  Community Board #11, Tom Albino, who has been here

          5  for several weeks, he is also a resident and person

          6  from the Bay 8th Street Parks, and Sgt. Bill Loesch

          7  from the Highway #2, also a Bay Ridge/Bensonhurst

          8  officer.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you,

         10  Council member, why don't we have them come up and

         11  just give their names and say they're for, and then

         12  it will go on the record.

         13                 Council Member Fiala, will you,

         14  please?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA:  Mr. Chairman,

         16  I am not a member of this Committee, but I am a co-

         17  sponsor of this bill, and I will tell you last year

         18  was my first year in office and one of the saddest

         19  duties I had in the first half of my first year was

         20  attending the funeral of Officer Mosomillo, and it

         21  has left an indelible mark on my psyche, and sadly,

         22  I have had too many other funerals to attend.

         23                 I just wanted to come and speak in

         24  favor of the legislation, obviously, I would

         25  recommend its support since I am a co- sponsor, but
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          2  I think this is a wonderful, living tribute to a man

          3  who left an indelible mark on our society and who

          4  was taken from us far too soon.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you.

          6  Other persons, if you fill out forms, if you just

          7  simply would like to go on the record of saying you

          8  are for or against, so that it may be in the record,

          9  we will hear that not.  You didn't want to testify,

         10  but you have something to say, so tell us who you

         11  are?

         12                 MR. MOSOMILLO:  My name is Sal

         13  Mosomillo, I'm in strong favor of this bill.  I

         14  would like to thank Council Member Golden, Council

         15  Member Oddo, and I'm asking you please pass this

         16  bill, because do my favor, and my family so much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you, so he

         18  was related to you in what way?

         19                 MR. MOSOMILLO:  My brother.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Your brother.

         21                 MR. MOSOMILLO:  My older brother.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  I just wanted

         23  you to get that on record.  Thank you very much.

         24                 MR. MOSOMILLO:  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:   All right,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            17

          1  COMMITTEE ON PARKS, RECREATION, CULTURAL AFFAIRS

          2  thank you.  Are you in favor of this bill?  Tell us

          3  your name.

          4                 MR. ALBINO:  My name is Tom Albino,

          5  the Chairman of the Ad Hoc Committee for patrons of

          6  Bay 8th Street Park.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  And you're for

          8  the bill?

          9                 MR. ALBINO:  Definitely for it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 MR. ALBINO:  And I was a supervisor

         13  at that facility for a time, and also worked there

         14  as a laborer.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 MR. ALBINO:  You're welcome.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  All right, any

         19  one else who would like to be on the record?  If

         20  you're going to testify, we would like for you to

         21  fill out of the forms, otherwise, just tell us who

         22  you are and whether you are for or against?

         23                 MS. MICHAELS:  My name if Adeline

         24  Michaels.  I'm Chairperson on the Environment at

         25  CB#11, and we are honored to, in favor of this bill.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you very

          3  much, Ma'am. Officers, thank you for coming.

          4                 SGT. LOESCH:  Good afternoon.  Thank

          5  you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Good afternoon.

          7                 SGT. LOESCH:  My name is Sergeant

          8  William Loesch from Highway Patrol Precinct No. 2.

          9  I'm a Bay Ridge resident, also worked in the 67

         10  Precinct, and I'm in favor of the bill, it would be

         11  a great honor being a New York City Police Officer

         12  to have that named after that officer who gave his

         13  life.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you,

         15  Sergeant.  Any thing else you wish to say, or does

         16  that say it all?

         17                 SGT. LOESCH:  That says it all, Sir.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  All right, thank

         19  you very much.

         20                 SGT. LOESCH:  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you,

         22  Sergeant.

         23                 MR. MCNULTY:  I'm Police Officer

         24  Michael McNulty from Highway Patrol #2, and I am

         25  absolutely in favor of the bill, Sir.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  And that is all

          3  you have to say.

          4                 MR. MCNULTY:  Yes, Sir.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Okay, thank you

          6  very much for your coming and for your testimony.

          7  All right, any other Council members, any one else?

          8  Thank you, we will couple that one.

          9                 All right, Council Member Fiala, will

         10  you tell us about 475?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA:  Very briefly,

         12  Mr. Chair, I ask that the Committee vote in favor of

         13  Intro. 475, I'm the prime sponsor, it is for the

         14  renaming of Sampson Avenue in Great Kills in Staten

         15  Island as Anne McGarvey Way.  Anne McGarvey was a

         16  pioneer for seniors on Staten Island, and she was

         17  instrumental in helping to create what we call the

         18  friendship clubs out there, there are in excess of

         19  seven of them now, and they provide needed services

         20  to our seniors.  I would also ask that the Council

         21  add, Councilman Oddo, I had sent a memo, but I note

         22  that his name is not listed, if he could be added as

         23  a prime co- sponsor?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  We will take

         25  care, we will do that, Sir.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA:  Thank you, Mr.

          3  Chair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you.

          5  Anyone else here to speak on this?  All right, thank

          6  you.  Councilman, your name will be added.

          7                 Council Member Golden, again.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  Thank you,

          9  Mr. Chair.  It's an unfortunate day here that we're

         10  out here naming Parks and Interchanges after a

         11  police officers that has died in the line of duty,

         12  but, unfortunately, this another situation where a

         13  police officer in the 68 Precinct died in the line

         14  of duty, who worked and was on patrol in Highway #2,

         15  and had been directed to redirect traffic at an oil

         16  spill, and as he was doing that a car came over a

         17  hill and hit him, killing him instantly.  He had 14

         18  years of service, he was 33 years of age, he had

         19  done many heroic deeds in the New York City Police

         20  Department, he was a fireman, a volunteer fireman,

         21  and he had raised money at his precincts to help a

         22  Florida family stranded in New York and fix their

         23  car when he enabled them to drive home.  He had done

         24  several deeds in bringing people, mouth- to- mouth

         25  and bringing people back to life that have been in
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          2  car accidents, and the man is a true tribute to the

          3  Police Department.

          4                 It's unfortunate, however, that we're

          5  here naming these Interchanges and the Park after

          6  these two great officers. But I hope that the

          7  Committee will find favor upon this name change, and

          8  we have some officers here that not only have worked

          9  with Officer Charles Oddo, but were good friends of

         10  his as well.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you,

         12  Councilman. Officers, are you going to speak on this

         13  bill?  Would you go back again, and same routine

         14  again, identify yourselves again and let's hear from

         15  you?  All right, would you get Claude up, please,

         16  and take these for us?  Thank you, Sergeant.

         17                 SGT. LOESCH:  My name is Sergeant

         18  William Loesch, Shield No. 2734, Highway Patrol

         19  Precinct #2 in Brooklyn.  I'm here to hopefully get

         20  this passed.   I would like to read, if I could,

         21  read a short memo here that I wrote on this

         22  situation.

         23                 Police Officer Charles Oddo, Shield

         24  #13695, tax #898202, was a New York City Police

         25  Officer for six and one- half years.  Police Officer
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          2  Charles Oddo, 33- years- old, fulfilled a life long

          3  dream when he was appointed to the NYPD in 1990.  He

          4  fulfilled another dream when he was finally assigned

          5  to the Highway Patrol Precinct #2, following a

          6  legacy set forth by his father, a long time Highway

          7  Patrol Sergeant.

          8                 On February 17th, 1996, those dreams

          9  came to an abrupt end when Officer Oddo was struck

         10  and killed by a vehicle while diverting traffic

         11  around an oil spill on the Belt Parkway, westbound,

         12  at approximately 67th Street.

         13                 Police Officer Charles Oddo performed

         14  a lot of community service, he was a volunteered

         15  fireman and also a registered emergency medical

         16  technician, who received police recognition in 1995

         17  for saving a heart attack victim by administering

         18  CPR while he was working in the first precinct.  On

         19  the day of his funeral, over 5,000 uniform officers

         20  with family, friends, and prominent officials lined

         21  the streets for a final salute to a fallen hero.

         22                 Police Commissioner William Braden

         23  called him a hero of the City, finest of the finest,

         24  a man who was not selfish, but wished to help others

         25  any way he could.
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          2                 And there is just one other quick

          3  thing I would like to read that was a log entry made

          4  on the day that this tragic incident happened, which

          5  I thing will say it all, and it gets me a little

          6  choked up, so I'm sorry if I get a little - -

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  That is all

          8  right, Sergeant.

          9                 SGT. LOESCH:  Lieutenant Petricci,

         10  President, reports along with the entire Command of

         11  Highway Unit 2, that on this tragic day at

         12  approximately 14:20 hours, that Police Officer

         13  Charles Oddo, Shield #13695, Tax #898202, gave his

         14  life in the line of duty at the westbound Belt

         15  Parkway at approximately 67th Street.

         16                 This ultimate and supreme sacrifice

         17  occurred while Police Officer Oddo was diverting

         18  traffic, something that each and every highway

         19  officer does every day.  Charles was a part of a

         20  police family who have informed us that being a

         21  Highway Patrol Officer was Charles' utmost wish.

         22                 Although Charlie left our family on

         23  earth, it is with comfort that all of us who remain

         24  here to serve, now that Charlie is patrolling the

         25  highways of heaven with his boots and britches
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          2  watching all of us.

          3                 Charlie, you have served us well, but

          4  your job is now much more important.  You have

          5  joined the honor roll of our honored heros.  It is

          6  by the grace of God that we serve.  Charlie, we will

          7  miss you, rest in peace.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you,

          9  Sergeant.  I would say that your testimony alone

         10  justifies, to me, if we need to have it justified,

         11  why we do these things.  Thank you very much.

         12  Anyone else?  All right, thank you.  Council

         13  members, thank you.  Council Member Victor Robles.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  Thank you,

         15  Mr. Chairman, my colleagues, I will not read, I

         16  think you have the report.  Let me just, perhaps,

         17  make some observations, and I guess this is a moment

         18  where you,  we are blessed in many ways, and one,

         19  for myself and many of my colleagues on this side of

         20  the aisle, we are blessed because we are elected,

         21  and it's moments like this one that you reflect upon

         22  your career and what does it mean.

         23                 First, let me say that I want to

         24  acknowledge the present of Reverend Doctor Jeremiah

         25  Fennell's wife, Audrey Carr Fennell.  Let me also
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          2  acknowledge the Chairperson of the Committee that

          3  came to me to honor Reverend Fennell with this name

          4  change, Mrs. Scott.  Let me also say that our

          5  District Manager in Community Board #1, which is

          6  Williamsburg/Greenpoint in North Brooklyn, is here

          7  with us too, and I'm sure that, at least, Mrs. Scott

          8  and perhaps Gerald will speak on this request.

          9                 Mr. Chairman, you, besides being an

         10  elected official and a Council member, carry another

         11  distinguished title, which few men and women, of

         12  course, those of us who are Roman Catholics cannot

         13  say that about women in the Catholic Church, but

         14  those of you, and I saw ministers, you have a

         15  special calling, Mr. Chairman, because before you

         16  were honorable, you were called to serve God as a

         17  minister, and you are, and people tend to forget

         18  that the Chairman really is the Honorable Reverend

         19  Wendell Foster, and he is a pastor in his own right.

         20    So, I believe that this name change strikes a very

         21  personal meaning to you, Sir.

         22                 Before I was elected and I was asked

         23  to serve and privileged to serve for the first black

         24  woman elected to the Congress to the United States,

         25  Congresswoman Shirley Chism, as part of my
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          2  responsibility was to be her ears and eyes while she

          3  was doing the people's business in Washington, I was

          4  the one who would go around and represent her.  I

          5  was privileged to meet this minister, which we

          6  referred to him as the street minister.

          7                 Mr. Chairman, those of us who

          8  sometimes forget that there is a special Book that

          9  many of us need to be reminded every so often and

         10  read constantly, I'm reminded of the 12 disciples

         11  and apostles when Christ said to Peter, now Peter

         12  upon this rock you shall build my church.  Let me

         13  tell you, Mr. Chairman, that on Moore Street between

         14  Bushwick Avenue and White Street, if you know

         15  anything about that community, it is divided between

         16  industrial and residential.

         17                 And on Moore Street happens to be the

         18  dividing line, and while I remember as a kid growing

         19  up in Williamsburg that I am privileged to represent

         20  here today in these halls, a lot of those who used

         21  to reside fled.  Yet, Reverend Fennell called upon

         22  by God to serve as His shepard, built what is known

         23  today as the Mount Calvary Fire Baptist Holiness

         24  Church.  Where it was a church standing alone,

         25  today, many people come through those doors. Today,
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          2  many of our children, many of our seniors,

          3  particularly our children are not incarcerated

          4  because they have walked through those halls.

          5  Reverend Fennell having that commitment, the first

          6  day care center in that community did not start in a

          7  public building, did not get started by a City

          8  agency, I know today it is the Administration of

          9  Children's Services, in those days it was called

         10  Agency for Child Development, yet, Reverend Fennell

         11  created the first day care center within that

         12  complex.

         13                 So today I ask you, Mr. Chairman and

         14  my colleagues to honor the people of my district to

         15  recognize a man of God, but a peacemaker, someone

         16  that when some people, and I see many of our finest

         17  being honored today, and it is communities like the

         18  one that I represent that sometimes because of the

         19  circumstances think that our finest are only there

         20  to hurt us rather than to protect us.  I must tell

         21  you that what a fitting tribute that Reverend

         22  Fennell is being honored along with two

         23  distinguished members of the New York City Police

         24  Department, who similarly gave their lives so that

         25  others may live.
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          2                 Mr. Chairman, I was honored and very

          3  specially, because I was not aware, although I

          4  thought I knew him a lot, that he was a sick man,

          5  and I did not know that he was on his dying bed.

          6  Yet, one day, I get a call from Mrs. Scott to inform

          7  me that Reverend Fennell had passed away, but what

          8  moves me is the fact, and I thank God for that, is

          9  that Reverend Fennell told his most precious spouse,

         10  his friend, his partner, that of all the politician

         11  that represents that community, the one politician

         12  he wanted there and to speak at his funeral was this

         13  humble servant. That is something, Mr. Chairman and

         14  my colleagues, that you will never forget.  I went

         15  to that funeral and to see that church, I mean full

         16  and spilling out in the street, yet, to see the love

         17  and the affection that people had for Reverend

         18  Fennell, I was moved, and Mr. Chairman and my

         19  colleagues, that is why today I'm before you honored

         20  to introduce this piece of legislation.  Because at

         21  that funeral I made a commitment, I did not know how

         22  I could really honor this holy man, and I guess when

         23  you have the Holy Spirit in you, the first thing

         24  that came to my mind and I looked at Mrs. Fennell

         25  and I looked at her in her eyes, although they were
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          2  full of tears, although I think sadness to a certain

          3  point, but I guess full of joy because you were

          4  blessed to share life with that great man, and I

          5  said to her, Mrs. Fennell, as a humble servant, the

          6  only thing I can do, is to go back to City Hall and

          7  introduce legislation to honor your husband because

          8  he deserves to be honored.

          9                 So, Mr. Chairman, I too want to thank

         10  you for allowing me to join our finest in paying

         11  tribute to one of God's children who gave of

         12  himself.  And let me end by reminding you, Sir, and

         13  I'm not practicing without a license, but when

         14  you're a Christian, you are always better be ready

         15  to be called upon to preach, if you need be.  But

         16  let me remind you, that He who gave life to us in

         17  that Book says to us, I am going before you to

         18  prepare a place, so that where I am, you will also

         19  be.

         20                 Today, Reverend Fennell joins the

         21  ranks of those heros, and as much as my colleagues

         22  and the police officers talked about those fine

         23  police officers patrolling the heavens with their

         24  motorcycle, Reverend Doctor Jeremiah Fennell is

         25  doing what he was known best for, he is carrying
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          2  God's message there in the heavens.

          3                 So, thank you, Mr. Chairman for

          4  allowing me to introduce this piece of legislation

          5  to honor the Reverend Doctor Jeremiah Fennell.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you,

          7  Council member.  Ms. Fennell is here, you don't have

          8  to testify, if you don't care to, but we do have Ms.

          9  Zela Scott and Mr. Gerald Esposito speak.  Ms.

         10  Fennell, would you like to say something as well?

         11  All right.  Just one minute, there is a third chair,

         12  first, Mr. Esposito, get in there, please?  Now

         13  start again by identifying yourself.

         14                 MRS. FENNELL:  Mr. Chairman, my name

         15  is Mrs. Audrey Fennell.  I was proud to be the wife

         16  of such a great man and such a great leader.  I was

         17  married to him for 40 years, 35 of those years, I

         18  saw him give his life for humanity.  I'm here today,

         19  and I'm asking you, please, to pass on this bill.

         20                 My husband told me, he said to me,

         21   "Honey, I have a very short life, but I'm here to

         22  help humanity."  He had a song that we used to sing

         23  together, and the words of this songs was, if I

         24  could help somebody as I travel along this road,

         25  there my living will not be in vain.  In the late
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          2  sixties and early seventies, when he was assigned to

          3  Williamsburg, there was nothing there, an old

          4  building, falling apart, but he said, by the grace

          5  of God, I will erect a new church.  Then he looked

          6  over in the community, he said, these children need

          7  help.  He had many oppositions, but he always said,

          8  we will get the job done.

          9                 As I watched my husband climbed the

         10  ladder of success, I stood at the foot of the

         11  mountain praying and asking God to give him the

         12  strength and the courage.  This was a humanitarian,

         13  he did not worry about the color of the skin, he was

         14  there to help everyone.  When people would come to

         15  him for housing, he said to them, I will reach out

         16  and help you.  He placed over 500 families in decent

         17  housing.  The day care center was established, we

         18  have been operating for over 27 years.  I will never

         19  forget my husband, 12 days from now, I will

         20  remember, a quarter after seven a.m., when I was

         21  standing over him and holding his hand, he had just

         22  said to me, honey, I love you, and I said to him,

         23  you know I love you.  And then he said to me, thank

         24  you, for helping me, you have been a wonderful wife.

         25    His head went back, I'm holding his hand, and God
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          2  called him home to rest.  This man worked, I mean he

          3  rolled up his sleeves and he worked.  What he

          4  believed in, that is what he fought for.

          5                 At the day of his funeral I was so

          6  highly honored to have our Councilman Victor Robles

          7  there.  Over 2,000 attended his funeral, you

          8  couldn't even get into the area of Bushwick and

          9  Moore Street, you couldn't get there, and I want to

         10  thank New York finest for how they kept everything.

         11  I must mention the 90th Precinct for how they kept

         12  order.

         13                 And I'm asking you today, it would be

         14  a great honor and it will release some of the grief

         15  that I have been carrying for one year after the

         16  passing of my beloved husband.  If you would pass

         17  this bill so that my grandchildren and everyone that

         18  look up, they can say this was a man that died, but

         19  he died helping somebody.  I wish to say thank you

         20  for considering this bill, and please pass this

         21  bill, because this was a great man, everyone that

         22  knew him, knew he was great.  He was a man that

         23  believed in education, first he was educated

         24  himself, Bachelor's Degree, Master's Degree,

         25  Doctrine Degree, and then he opened the opportunity,
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          2  he said, listen, if your training up a child now,

          3  the child will be able to go out and make a living

          4  for himself.

          5                 I must say that I'm happy to be the

          6  Chairperson of the Fennell Day Care Center, every

          7  child that has graduated has succeeded.  When they

          8  enter the first grade, they have been skipped to the

          9  second grade.  This man, he had a thought and he

         10  bought it. As God created man and woman in the

         11  Garden of Eden, God sent this great man.  I'm

         12  repeating myself, I was happy to be his wife of 40

         13  years.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Ms. Fennell, if

         16  I didn't know any better, I would think that you

         17  were in love with him and that he was a great man.

         18  Thank you very much.

         19                 MRS. FENNELL:  I am in love with him.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you very

         21  much.  Mr. Esposito, and then Ms. Scott.

         22                 MR. ESPOSITO:  I have a prepared

         23  statement, which I paraphrased while I was sitting

         24  in the audience, and now I'm going to paraphrase

         25  that, because so many eloquent words have been said
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          2  by Mrs. Fennell and Council Member Robles, that I

          3  will just add my own personal comments.

          4                 Reverend Jeremiah T. Fennell

          5  continues to lead the community that he was taken

          6  from too soon.  His spirit, will, and drive remain

          7  constant in his vision that life could be better in

          8  our neighborhood.  The renaming of Moore Street

          9  between Bushwick Avenue and White Street would serve

         10  as a fitting honor for this man who saw this

         11  community as a pinnacle of his love for all fellow,

         12  human kind.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you very

         15  much.  Ms. Scott.

         16                 MS. SCOTT:  First, I would like to

         17  just honor this royal chambers and all the royal

         18  people who are sitting in here. I would also like to

         19  give an honor to the deceased of such famous and

         20  calculating people to whom I have heard this

         21  morning.  We love them, I could tell, and I would

         22  like to say to you guys, keep that memory alive,

         23  just don't leave here with precious words, but keep

         24  whatever he started going.

         25                 My name is Zela Scott.  I am the
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          2  Chairperson of Reverend Doctor Jeremiah Fennell

          3  Moore Street changing of the name. I would like to

          4  say today, it is an honor for me to speak in this

          5  Chambers in reference to Dr. Fennell.  When I

          6  reflect back to my years, I can capture many people

          7  whom I deem great, whom I deem great successes upon

          8  them, and whom I can remember who created greatness.

          9    Dr. Fennell created greatness, first, because he

         10  believed in himself.  Second, because he believed

         11  that he could change things.  First before we can

         12  change things, we have to believe that it is within

         13  us that we can do it.

         14                 When he went to Williamsburg, he saw

         15  nothing, but he said, things can be created.  He saw

         16  the needs of senior citizens, he saw the need of the

         17  common man like it was paraphrased before, he did

         18  not see color, he did not see aged, he just saw

         19  people, and I'm one of the persons.  When I met Dr.

         20  Fennell I was young, coming out of high school, and

         21  he said to me, you must be in church.  And I said to

         22  him, yes, haha, right, because I just left my

         23  mother, and you know how that can be, she was very

         24  strict.  We went to church almost all day, Sunday

         25  school all through, and I said, once I reach 18,
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          2  that was it for me.  I had enough of Christ and I

          3  had enough of church.  So when he said to me, you

          4  know, you need to be in church. I said, okay, I will

          5  come because my parents taught me to be respectful.

          6  So I came and I saw and I couldn't believe that

          7  there was a new arising, that I too could reach in

          8  my life, and I stayed there and I'm there today.

          9                 He even taught us about education,

         10  how important it is.  He taught us about politics, I

         11  met the distinguished man when I was young, oh, we

         12  both were young, now don't look upon our faces, and

         13  I saw the work that they did in politics.  I went to

         14  school, first, I got my BA, I mean my BS, then my

         15  Master's, and I too, went into politics.  Yes, I

         16  served under David Dinkins.

         17                 So you see when I reflect back not

         18  only do I see greatness that he made, but how he

         19  enabled me to create my own greatness.  This day I

         20  will always remember because it is to honor a man

         21  that deserves to be honored, a man who gave his life

         22  for all of us, he saw no strangers, all he saw was

         23  love, love for humanity, that it is a legacy all of

         24  us adapt to.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you.
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          2                 MS. SCOTT:  And if we do that, we

          3  could create greatness every where.  And I stand

          4  today, to ask you, I implore you, to please change

          5  Moore Street to - -

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 MS. SCOTT:  Hold up.

          9                 To Reverend Doctor Jeremiah Fennell

         10  Street.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 Sergeant, call the members in, and

         15  please, roll call.  Thank you very much for your

         16  testimony, all of you.

         17                 Claude, you can begin with those of

         18  us who are present.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Foster.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Aye on all.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Povman.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER POVMAN:  Aye on all.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Eristoff.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF:  Aye on all.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Golden.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  Aye on all.

          3  May I be excused, sir?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: I don't find

          6  my name on Intro. No. 412. Could I please be added

          7  to that?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Repeat that,

          9  please, Mr. Golden.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  Intro. No.

         11  412, can my name, please, be added to that bill?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Sure, thank you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  Thank you,

         14  and aye on all.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you very

         16  much, Ms. Robinson is coming in, and we have heard

         17  testimony on the five bills.  Ms. Robinson and we're

         18  just waiting for you to vote and then, we will have

         19  passed them; is that correct?

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Robinson.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON:  Thank you,

         22  Mr. Chairman, for the opportunity to vote on this

         23  legislation, and I vote in the affirmative and I

         24  would like my name to placed on these pieces of

         25  legislation.  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you very

          3  much, Council member.  Thank you all for coming, all

          4  bills have been passed.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  The vote

          6  stands 5 in the affirmative, none in the negative

          7  with no abstentions.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Just a minute,

          9  Council members don't leave yet, please?  I simply

         10  want to say to those of you who have came to testify

         11  this afternoon, we thank you, we appreciate it, and

         12  this will be heard, will be passed on the 29th.

         13  After the 29th, we will simply then give it to

         14  Allen, he will take it to the Mayor, and he will

         15  twist the Mayor's arm and make him sign it.

         16                 Thank you very much, the 29th, next

         17  Thursday, the whole Council will simply vote yes,

         18  and then after that Allen will tell us when the

         19  Mayor is going to sign it into law.  Thank you.

         20                 Council members will you remain for a

         21  minute, please?  Thank you everyone for coming.

         22                 Mr. Albino, will you please take the

         23  same chair, we have five minutes for you, please.

         24  Council Member Linares, we will keep the vote open.

         25  May I say, thank you, Victor.  Mr. Albino
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          2  was not on the agenda, this is not, as I explained

          3  to him, Council members, that this was hearing

          4  simply for street name changes, but this is the

          5  third time coming before us and there is something

          6  that he would like to say to us, and I think he can

          7  say it within five minutes so that we will be within

          8  our allotted time.

          9                 Mr. Albino, would you introduce

         10  yourself?

         11                 MR. ALBINO:  Yes, my name is Tom

         12  Albino.  I'm the Chairman of the Ad Hoc Committee

         13  for the Patrons of Bay 8th Street Park.  I represent

         14  over thousands of patrons that use this park.

         15                 The reason I want to speak before

         16  this - -

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Just one minute.

         18    Council member, would you, please, thank you.  I'm

         19  sorry to do that to you. Now you say you represent a

         20  thousand people?

         21                 MR. ALBINO:  Thousands of people that

         22  use a park, because that is how heavily they use

         23  this park.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Now are you here

         25  representing yourself or representing them.
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          2                 MR. ALBINO:  Representing everyone.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  All right, thank

          4  you very much.

          5                 MR. ALBINO:  Right.  The reason why I

          6  want to speak before this Committee is being that it

          7  is the Parks and Recreation Committee, I'm sure that

          8  you are the people that are interested in how they

          9  use parks.  Now this particular park, this building

         10  was renovated at close to $1 million, some time

         11  about six or seven years ago, and they created a

         12  huge recreation room.  But when they renovated the

         13  toilets, they created two little closets, and I have

         14  pictures of them, and I will show the Committee if

         15  they are interested to see it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  All right.

         17                 MR. ALBINO:  And they amount to just

         18  a closet, one for the girls and one for the boys.

         19  Now if you ever go there on a Sunday there are six

         20  to seven hundred people using this facility.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  May I just

         22  interrupt you, what you're saying is that they only

         23  have two small toilets?

         24                 MR. ALBINO:  Right, exactly.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  And whose
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          2  Council District is that in?

          3                 MR. ALBINO:  Councilman Oddo.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  All right, Mr.

          5  Oddo, has taken note of that and he will work on

          6  that.

          7                 MR. ALBINO:  Right.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Okay, you're on

          9  the record as saying that we need more toilet

         10  facilities; is that right?

         11                 MR. ALBINO:  Yes, and I'm aware that

         12  inside the building there are more toilet

         13  facilities, because I have been into the building.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Could I suggest

         15  then Councilman Oddo, have you made a tour?  Speak

         16  into the microphone, please, so it can go on the

         17  record.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Yes, I have

         19  actually been at the park many times, but I will

         20  work with Mr. Albino to address his specific

         21  concerns.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  You will?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Yes, Sir.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  All right, he

         25  said he will work with you to address it.
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          2                 MR. ALBINO:  Right.  Now, in addition

          3  there was a recreation room created that could - -

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  No, no, just a

          5  minute, Mr. Albino.  I'm not trying to - -

          6                 MR. ALBINO:  No, I will make it

          7  brief.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  All I'm trying

          9  to say is that your Council member has said he will

         10  work with you, because if he is going to work with

         11  then that is coming back before us anyway, but

         12  finish your statement, please?

         13                 MR. ALBINO:  So we want access to

         14  that building, in the winter time we should be able

         15  to use that room, the senior citizens that

         16  contributed much to the City, including myself.  I'm

         17  a 29 year veteran of the Parks Department, 18 years

         18  as a supervisor.  If you recall about in 1980, that

         19  was before your Committee, when you were a member of

         20  Walter Ward.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  I remember that.

         22                 MR. ALBINO:  And I brought a lot of

         23  information about the Parks and how I was unable to

         24  do my job as a supervisor. I love parks, I go to

         25  parks, whenever I travel to Europe, I speak with
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          2  Park supervisors and Park employees, to me, all my

          3  life I have been using the parks.  The parks should

          4  be for the people, just like Lincoln said, govern of

          5  the people, by the people and for the people, and

          6  the parks should be there.

          7                 Now I have submitted 80 signatures to

          8  Councilman Golden's Office, and I understand he

          9  submitted it to Commissioner Spiegel.  And

         10  Commissioner Spiegel through Councilman Golden says

         11  he is not going to do anything about that.  He

         12  originally said to his staff that this room was used

         13  for storage, and that is a joke.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Now let me

         15  interrupt you again, please?

         16                 MR. ALBINO:  All right, let's get the

         17  record straight.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  No, let me

         19  interrupt you again, now, please?  The Council

         20  member is going to look into it and investigate it,

         21  and then it is his responsibility to bring back to

         22  us a report as to what he wants done.

         23                 MR. ALBINO:  All right, fine.  And

         24  there are other things.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Excuse me,
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          2  listen to me carefully now, I know that you are

          3  zealous about this.

          4                 MR. ALBINO:  I appreciate it.  Yes, I

          5  am, very.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  I'm trying to

          7  say that you have given us sufficient for us to say

          8  to the Council member, we will await his report to

          9  us.

         10                 MR. ALBINO:  All right, fine.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  That is as far

         12  as we go.

         13                 MR. ALBINO:  All right, fine.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  So whatever else

         15  you may say today is redundant because we still have

         16  to wait for the Council member.

         17                 MR. ALBINO:  No, I don't want to

         18  burden you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Mr. Chairman,

         20  Mr. Albino is fortunate, he has two Council members,

         21  he is actually a constituent of Council Member

         22  Golden, but the Park is in my District.

         23                 MR. ALBINO:  Right.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  So he has two

         25  Council members, how fortunate you are.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  So we will here

          3  from these Council members.

          4                 MR. ALBINO:  Well, I brought this

          5  matter to Councilman Golden, in due respect to him,

          6  nothing has been done.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Excuse me,

          8  excuse me, Sir, the point is this - -

          9                 MR. ALBINO:  And Councilman Oddo

         10  never got back to me, I called - -

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Mr. Albino,

         12  please, listen to me carefully, please.

         13                 MR. ALBINO:  Mr. Albino, Sir.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Listen, please?

         15  There are thousands of issues coming before this

         16  Council, if not weekly, monthly.  Many people come

         17  to me and complain and complain to our Counsel here

         18  that you're not hearing my bill, this, that or the

         19  other, but we can only do so much in a given time.

         20                 Now what I'm saying is take it on

         21  faith that these two Council members, honorable

         22  members, have said here publicly that they're going

         23  to address this issue.  Now what I suggest you do is

         24  work with them and give them a chance, do not

         25  criticize them before the fact, listen to me
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          2  carefully, and if there is something you disagree,

          3  go to them individually, don't bring it before the

          4  whole Council.

          5                 MR. ALBINO:  Well I had no choice.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  No, no, yes, you

          7  did. Excuse me, Sir.  You were not on the agenda, it

          8  was your Council member that put you on the agenda.

          9                 MR. ALBINO:  Well, thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  All right, what

         11  I suggesting you do is you thank the Council members

         12  and wait till they have the report.

         13                 MR. ALBINO:  Thank you.  All right,

         14  yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 MR. ALBINO:  You're welcome. Thank

         18  you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  All right, we

         20  stand adjourned. Thank you very much.  Oh, I'm

         21  sorry, Councilman Linares, how do you vote?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES:  I vote aye.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Aye, thank you

         24  very much. Claude, did you get that.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  Mr. Chairman?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Someone is

          3  calling my name, oh, Mr. Golden, I'm sorry.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  I would like

          5  to thank you for taking the time out, I know there

          6  were seven and one- half million people in the City

          7  of New York and this is very unusual that you would

          8  take a request of a City Councilman and let one of

          9  his constituents come up, and plead before this

         10  Committee some of his gripes for the community, and

         11  I thank you for that privilege today, Sir, thank

         12  you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you very

         14  much, Council Member Golden.  Now, Mr. Albino,

         15  listen to me carefully now, take an older man's

         16  advice, if you want something done, you catch more

         17  flies with honey than you do with vinegar.  If these

         18  men are your Council members and they have said they

         19  will work with you, they can't do it overnight, but

         20  give them a chance, and I'm suggesting to you, I'm

         21  not admonishing you, I'm simply advising you as your

         22  chronological senior, do not criticize people that

         23  you want to work for you publicly, go to them

         24  privately and get it settled.  They said they will

         25  do it, give them a chance.  God Bless You.  We stand
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          2  adjourned.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  The vote

          4  stands at 6 in the affirmative, none in the

          5  negative, with no abstentions.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:   All right, you

          7  heard that.  The Intros were passed, by what Claude?

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Six.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Six in the

         10  affirmative, thank you.

         11                 (Hearing concluded at 2:02 p.m.)
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